
1 
 

 
 

VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING NOTICE/AGENDA 

 
September 12, 2023, 7:00 pm 

 
RICHARD T. FLICKINGER MUNICIPAL CENTER, COUNCIL CHAMBERS  

6101 CAPULINA AVENUE, MORTON GROVE, IL 60053  
  
In accordance with the Illinois Open Meetings Act, all Village Board and Commission meetings are open to the 
public. This meeting can be viewed remotely via the live stream link found at: www.mortongroveil.org/stream. (If 
an Executive Session is placed on the agenda, the meeting shall commence at 6:00 pm and the time between 6:00 
pm and 7:00 pm shall be used for the Executive Session per 1-5-7A of the Village of Morton Grove Municipal 
Code. If the Agenda does not include an Executive Session, the meeting will begin at 7:00 pm.)  

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting – August 22, 2023 

 
4. Special Reports - None 

 
5. Public Hearings – None 

 
6. Plan Commission Reports - None 

 
7. Residents’ Comments (agenda items only) 
 
8. President’s Report – Administration, Comprehensive Plan, Council of Mayors, 

Northwest Municipal Conference, Strategic Plan Committee 
 

a. Proclamation: Constitution Week 
 

b. Summer 2023 Photo Contest Winners presented by  
Trustee Connie Travis 

 
9. Clerk’s Report – Family & Senior Services, Advisory Commission on Aging 

Condominium Association 
 

10. Staff Report  
 

a. Village Administration 
 

b. Corporation Counsel 
 

http://www.mortongroveil.org/stream


 2 

11. Reports by Trustees  
 

a. Trustee Khan – Finance Department, Appearance Commission, Capital Projects, 
Lehigh/Ferris TIF (Trustee Travis)    

  
b. Trustee Minx – Fire Department, Fire Pension Board,, Special Events 

Commission, RED Center, NIPSTA (Trustee Thill)   
 

1. Resolution 23-37 Authorizing the Sale of Personal Property owned by the 
Village of Morton Grove 

  
c. Trustee Shiba – Building Department, Environment & Natural Resources 

Commission, Legal Department, IT Department (Trustee Witko)  
 

1.  Resolution 23-36 Authorizing the Renewal of a Professional Services 
Agreement between the Village of Morton Grove and SAFEbuilt Illinois, 
LLC. 

 
d. Trustee Thill – Public Works Department, SWANCC (Solid Waste Agency of 

Northern Cook County), MG-Niles Water Commission, Traffic Safety Commission 
(Trustee Minx)   

 
1. Resolution 23-38 Authorizing a Contract with Stertil Koni USA Inc. to 

Replace Existing Public Works OMER Vehicle Lift   
 

e. Trustee Travis – Police Department, Police Pension Board, Fire & Police  
Commission, Community Relations Commission, (Trustee Khan)    

  
f. Trustee Witko – Community & Economic Development Department, Economic  

Development Commission, Plan Commission/ Zoning Board (Trustee Shiba) 
 

12. Other Business 

13. Presentation of Warrants: $770,103.73 

14. Residents’ Comments 

15.  Adjournment 

 



   

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE PRESIDENT 
AND THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE 

RICHARD T. FLICKINGER MUNICIPAL CENTER COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AUGUST 22, 2023 

 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
  

 I.  
& II. 

In the absence of Village President Dan DiMaria (absent with notice), Village Clerk Eileen Harford 
called the Regular Meeting of the Village Board to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of 
Village Hall and led the assemblage in the Pledge of Allegiance. She then asked the Board for a  
motion to approve one of their colleagues to serve as President pro-tem for tonight’s meeting. 
 
Trustee Travis moved to name Trustee Witko as President pro-tem for this meeting, seconded by 
Trustee Thill.  Clerk Harford called the roll: 
 
Motion passed: 6 ayes, 0 nays. 
 
Tr. Khan           aye                               Tr. Minx           aye                Tr. Shiba            aye                          
Tr. Thill            aye                                Tr. Travis         aye                Tr. Witko           aye 
 
 

 Village Clerk Eileen Harford called the roll. Present were Trustees Saba Khan, Rita Minx,  
Ashur Shiba, John Thill, Connie Travis, and Janine Witko.  
 
 

III. 
 
 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Trustee Minx moved to approve the Minutes of the August 8, 2023 Village Board Meeting as  
presented. Trustee Travis seconded the motion.  Motion passed unanimously via voice vote.  
 
 

IV. 
 
 
 

SPECIAL REPORTS 
 

NONE 
 
 

V. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

NONE 
 
 

  



Minutes of Aug 22, 2023 Board Meeting 

 2

VI. 
 

PLAN COMMISSION REPORTS 
 

NONE 
 
 

VII. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

a. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

a. 
 
 
 
 
 

RESIDENTS’ COMMENTS (Agenda Items Only) 
 

President pro-tem Witko noted that on this evening’s agenda is Resolution 23-29, Approving and 
Adopting the 2023 Village of Morton Grove Strategic Plan Update. 
 
She said a number of residents are present this evening to comment on the Strategic Plan Update. 
She asked that each limit their speaking time to four (4) minutes, and asked them to try not being 
repetitive in their statements. 
 
Janice Cha, 8924 Olcott. Ms. Cha is a 20-year resident and is on the leadership team for Vision 
Morton Grove. She said her husband is Asian—a Korean American—who grew up in Quincy, IL, so 
he knows first-hand how it feels to live in a community where diversity and inclusion do not exist 
She said she was glad to see that diversity is a part of Morton Grove’s Strategic Plan. In the section 
titled “Long Term–Routine,” the plan notes the Village’s intention to continue to embrace diversity 
and promote a unified community by maintaining and increasing community engagement from all 
ethnic groups, cultures, and residents; and further, will implement and support programs and  
activities. 
 
Ms. Cha said she’s asking that the Village act on those points by signing on to Cook County’s 
“United Against Hate” campaign. This initiative disrupts discrimination by providing pictorial, 
verbal, and education examples of how to stand up against all forms of hate. Neighboring 
communities that have already joined this campaign include Arlington Heights, Glenview, Glencoe, 
Wheeling, and Wilmette. The website www.CookCountyUnitedAgainstHate.com has more 
information. 
 
 
Bob Raccuglia, 7439 Arcadia, is a 19-year resident and a member of Vision Morton Grove’s 
leadership team. He said he was happy to see the Strategic Plan includes a goal of continuing to 
promote equity, diversity, and inclusion (EDI) within the Village. Mr. Raccuglia said he’s aware that 
there can be a “backlash” against terminology like EDI, some see it as being a form of political 
correctness or as a fad, but it speaks to something more important and substantial than that, 
something that is neither liberal nor conservative. He explained that “Equity” involves creating a 
fair playing field so everyone has the same opportunities and rights. “Diversity” recognizes and 
celebrates our differences. “Inclusion” creates an environment where everyone has a place at the 
table and is valued for their distinctive skills, experiences, and perspectives.  
 
Mr. Raccuglia hoped that “EDI” was not just a cosmetic catchphrase in the Strategic Plan  
document, and encouraged the Village to keep the goal of equity, diversity, and inclusion as a 
guiding principle in implementing all of the objectives in the Strategic Plan. He also urged the 
Board to make EDI an important element of the Village’s hiring practices, of Village policy-making, 
in the planning of Village events and celebrations, and in the Village’s distribution of services and 
resources. 

http://www.cookcountyunitedagainsthate.com/


Minutes of Aug 22, 2023 Board Meeting 

 3

VII. 
 

3. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

a. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4. 
 
 
 
 
 

a. 
 
 
 
 
 

b. 
 
 
 
 
 

c. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESIDENTS’ COMMENTS (Agenda Items Only) (continued) 
 
Jon Cole, 6023 S. Park Ave. Mr. Cole said he is a 30-year resident, a member of the Village’s  
Ad Hoc Strategic Plan Committee and he also serves on the leadership team of Vision Morton 
Grove. He thanked everyone who had played a role in the development of the new Strategic Plan. 
After the first draft was released, he submitted some comments to the members of the  
Committee and the Village Board, and said he appreciated that some people took the time to  
respond back to him. When the second draft of the plan was released, he was pleased to see that 
some changes had been made based on the input the Village received. 
 
Mr. Cole said his comments tonight have to do with the next phase of taking the goals of the new 
plan and developing and implementing action steps and strategies in the coming months and  
years. He said he was not speaking just for himself, but on behalf of all the members of Vision 
Morton Grove and over 200 individuals, businesses, and organizations who signed on to this  
request last year. One of the specific actions they are all advocating is to have EDI plans for 
recruiting, hiring, and retaining employees in all Village departments and in appointing individuals 
to Village Commissions. Mr. Cole said that some efforts and actions have already been made 
towards this and applauded the Board for those, adding, “We hope to see these built upon and 
expanded in an organized and comprehensive manner and we look forward to collaborating with 
you to make this happen.” 
 
 
Bob Burkhart, 6034 Grove Ct.  Mr. Burkhart is a 16-year resident speaking about EDI as part of the 
Strategic Plan. He said he appreciated the dialogue that he and some others have had with 
Mr. Czerwinski and the changes that resulted from those talks. He also thanked the Board for 
keeping everyone informed. He said his comments are directed more to the implementation of 
the plan rather than the plan itself.  
 
Mr. Burkhart said Vision MG hopes EDI will be kept continually in mind as the Strategic Plan  
unfolds. He said, “There’s a saying: If something is everyone’s responsibility, it ends up being no 
one’s responsibility.” He said he is aware that every member of the Village staff has a full plate and 
that there is no particular commission or committee set up to implement EDI. As it stands, EDI 
could very easily fall through the cracks.   
 
Mr. Burkhart said EDI developments don’t happen merely by saying so. EDI is a complex matter 
with numerous underlying sociological and economic practices. Most municipalities and  
companies that take EDI seriously set up specific groups or hire staff specifically skilled in EDI  
practices. That said, Mr. Burkhart said he hoped the Village would either hire or designate a  
specific staff member to be an EDI officer, even if only part-time.  
 
Mr. Burkhart said, alternatively the Village could set up an EDI Commission, as they did with the 
recently established Environmental and Natural Resources Commission (ENRC). He felt that, given 
the size of the total Village budget, it should be possible to find dollars to assist in accomplishing 
this goal. His experience is that when a group decides to do something, it will find the money to  
do it. 
 
 



Minutes of Aug 22, 2023 Board Meeting 

 4

VII. 
 

5. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

a. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

b. 
 

RESIDENTS’ COMMENTS (Agenda Items Only) (continued) 
 
Beverly Copeland, 9323 Olcott Avenue, is a 58-year resident who said she has seen many  
changes. She said she likes the new Village “tagline” of Incredibly Close. Amazingly Open. 
She also likes how diversity within the Village has been evolving, but, she said, she would also like 
to see more diversity in the various Village departments and commissions. She asked the Village to 
sign on to Cook County’s “United Against Hate” campaign and to also consider EDI in all matters. 
 
 
Akhter Sadiq, 5736 Main Street is a 33-year resident commenting on the proposed updated  
Strategic Plan. He said there are mentions of EDI but he did not see a concrete plan or commission 
to deal with it. He noted that are over 125 people serving on various Village Commissions,  
Committees, and Boards, such as the Advisory Commission on Aging, the Appearance Commission, 
the Cable and Telecommunications Commission, the Community Relations Commission, the 
Economic Development Commission, the Environmental and Natural Resources Commission, the 
Fire and Police Commission, the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals, and the Traffic 
Safety Commission. He asked the Board, speaking as a minority, why is there not an Equity, 
Diversity, and Inclusion Commission, or failing that, an EDI Officer? 
 
 
Jim Szczepaniak, 8525 Lillibet Terrace. He said that he’s a 31-year resident, and he and his wife 
find the Morton Grove community warm and welcoming, with excellent level of municipal  
services. He thanked the Board and the Ad Hoc Committee, and said it’s great to see the Village 
acknowledge not only the varying weaknesses and challenges of this diverse community, but also 
its strengths and opportunities. Regarding EDI, he said, lots of people have good intentions, but 
they’re busy or they’re employed. He was the Community Relations Director for Niles Twp.  
Dist. 219 for 15 years, and said there were various efforts under way to try to get racial equity,  
social justice, and ethnic diversity ingrained in the local culture. It wasn’t until an Equity Director 
was hired that things began to move. 
 
Mr. Szczepaniak said he’s impressed with the points of the Strategic Plan, but it struck him that,  
in the “Overall Themes Based on All Focus Group Feedback,” there are some very specific things, 
which include “Recruiting and retaining quality employees who are representative of the 
community” and “Continuing efforts to promote equity, diversity, and inclusion in the Village.”  
But when he moved to the “Goals” section, which sometimes looks and feels like a “checklist,” he 
found it to be much more general. He said the Village should want EDI in a checklist so that 
important work doesn’t get lost. Especially given the fact that Morton Grove’s population is over 
33% Asian; that we have so many immigrant families we can’t assume they are proficient in 
English, or that they know how to access Village services. We can’t assume they would “know” to 
pick up a phone and call the Village, or the Library, or Niles Twp. Government.  
 
Mr. Szczepaniak said he doesn’t really expect the Village to hire another staff member for EDI, but 
he did hope that, at the least, the Village would consider an advisory commission on EDI, so they 
can say they are doing everything possible to make sure they’re reaching out to those people, so 
that all the great services and efforts the Village is making to serve residents really will be serving 
all residents.  
 



Minutes of Aug 22, 2023 Board Meeting 

 5

VIII. 
 

1. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

2. 
 

 
a. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

b. 
 
 
 
 
 

c. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

d. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
 

President pro-tem Witko said she was proud to report that the Morton Grove Police Department 
has won first place in the 2023 Illinois Traffic Safety Challenge for municipal police departments 
with 36 to 50 sworn members. This is the third time the MGPD has won the challenge, having also 
prevailed in 2019 and 2021. The Police Department also won the Rail Safety Specialty Award for 
the third year in a row. President p-t Witko said the Illinois Traffic Safety Challenge is a friendly 
competition between law enforcement agencies of a similar size and type, sponsored by the 
Illinois Association of Chiefs of Police. Departments submit a very detailed application highlighting 
the community’s traffic safety program and the effect it has on reducing traffic crashes, injuries, 
and fatalities. The Board joined her in congratulating Chief Simo and the MGPD on these 
accomplishments. 
 
 

Next, President p-t Witko presented Resolution 23-29, Approving and Adopting the 2023 Village 
of Morton Grove Strategic Plan Update. 
 

She said, in 2015, the Village Board adopted a strategic plan to assist the Village in formulating and 
prioritizing its goals, strategies, and direction, and to provide a framework for the allocation of its 
resources for the next five to seven years.  In 2022, the Village engaged Northern Illinois University 
Center for Government Studies to assist the Village in updating the Strategic Plan. An Ad Hoc  
committee of 11 residents was appointed to ensure the Strategic Plan was reflective of the 
Village’s unique needs and desires. The process included numerous opportunities for residents, 
business owners, elected and appointed officials, and other internal and external stakeholders to 
share their vision for the future of Morton Grove through community meetings, workshops,  
targeted focus group discussions, and interviews. 
 

The Plan is organized into four strategic categories: Character, Community, Governance, and  
Economy, and sets forth strategic goals to accomplish positive change and community  
improvement over the next five to seven years. The Strategic Plan is not designed to be a static 
document and will be continually assessed and adjusted to reflect the changing environment and 
evolving needs of the community. 
 
President p-t Witko said the draft strategic plan was introduced for consideration at the July 25th 
Village Board meeting, and, at Mayor DiMaria’s request, the resolution was tabled to tonight’s 
meeting to give residents additional time to provide comments and suggestions. The draft plan has 
been posted on the Village’s website since early July. She said the Village is grateful for the many 
positive comments received, and also appreciates and has taken into account the constructive 
criticism and suggestions offered, and refined the Plan accordingly. 
 
The revisions to the Plan include highlighting the importance the Village places on serving all  
residents. One of Morton Grove’s greatest strengths is our diversity, as we welcome and use our 
efforts to respond to the needs of all ages, genders, races, national origins, and cultures. Key 
emphasis has been and always will be focused on our seniors, as they are a very important part of 
our community. The revised Plan identifies 20 strategic goals sorted by category, timeframe, and 
complexity. Based on comments from residents and direction from the Board, priority rankings 
which were included in the first draft of the Plan have been removed, because the Village believes 
all of the identified strategic goals are important and can be achieved. 



Minutes of Aug 22, 2023 Board Meeting 

 6

VII. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

e. 
 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT (continued) 
 
President pro-tem Witko asked the Board for a motion to approve Resolution 23-29.  
Trustee Travis so moved, seconded by Trustee Shiba. 
 
Motion passed: 6 ayes, 0 nays. 
 
Tr. Khan           aye                               Tr. Minx           aye                Tr. Shiba            aye                          
Tr. Thill            aye                                Tr. Travis         aye                Tr. Witko           aye 
 
 
Trustee Thill commented that, this past Saturday, he had attended the Assyrian Food Festival and 
then an event at the Muslim Education Center. Seeing all the families enjoying themselves at both 
events, he couldn’t help but feel like he was actually witnessing diversity. 
 
 

IX. 
 

1. 
 
 
 

2. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. 
 

CLERK’S REPORT 
 
Clerk Harford announced that the September Senior Luncheon will be at the Civic Center on 
September 1, 2023. Seniors should call 847-868-5928 to reserve a spot. 
 
 
Clerk Harford also announced that free blood sugar and cholesterol screenings for seniors will be 
taking place the third Thursday of every month at 10am at the Civic Center. The Village’s senior 
programming has recently engaged with Oak Street Health (a division of CVS Health) to be able to 
offer these screenings to local seniors. Health progressions will provide the service and no  
appointment is necessary. The screenings are free. 
 
 
Lastly, Clerk Harford promoted the Senior Ride Share Program. This program is supported by funds 
through the SafeLIGHT Foundation and private donors. The program offers free Lyft rides to 
registered residents who are at least 65 years old. A total of 60 Morton Grove senior “households” 
are currently registered and receiving services. As of the end of July, a total of 171 rides have been 
provided since the program’s inception in late 2022. Scheduled rides are provided to grocery 
stores, pharmacies, and medical appointments within Morton Grove. Rides are also available to 
medical appointments at most area hospitals and medical buildings. The program will continue as 
long as funds are available. 
 
 

X. 
 

A. 
 
 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORTS 
 
Village Administrator: 
 
Village Administrator Czerwinski wanted everyone to be aware that the National Weather Service 
has issued an Excessive Heat Watch from Wednesday, August 23 at 11:00 a.m. through Thursday, 
August 24, at 8:00 p.m. and an Excessive Heat Warning from Wednesday, August 23 from  
11:00 a.m. through 9:00 p.m.  



Minutes of Aug 22, 2023 Board Meeting 

 7

X. 
 

a. 
 

STAFF REPORTS (continued) 
 
Cooling center will be available during regular business hours at the following locations: 

 American Legion Memorial Civic Center, 6140 Dempster Street, 847-470-5223, 
from 8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

 Prairie View Community Center, 6834 Dempster Street, 847-965-7447, 
from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through Saturday, closed Sundays 

 Morton Grove Public Library, 6140 Lincoln Avenue, 847-965-4220, 
from 9:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. Monday through Thursday; 9:00 a.m. to  
6:00 p.m. Fridays, 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Saturdays; and 1:00 p.m. to 
5:00 p.m. on Sundays 

 
Mr. Czerwinski noted that seniors can be particularly susceptible to the effects of extremely hot 
weather and encouraged neighbors of elderly folks to check in on them. The Village website also 
contains best practice reminders for the public with this in mind; see www.mortongroveil.org. 
 

 Drink plenty of water. 

 Air conditioning provides the safest escape from the heat. 

 Go elsewhere to get relief during the hottest part of the day if you have 
no air conditioning. 

 Stay indoors as much as possible, on the lowest floor out of the sun. Keep 
heat outside and cool air inside by closing any doors or windows that may 
allow heat in. 

 Plan to check on family, friends, and neighbors (especially the elderly) who 
do not have air conditioning or who spend much of their time alone. Be a 
friendly neighbor—make sure they’re safe. 

 Eat small meals of carbohydrates, salads, and fruits, and eat more often. 
Avoid foods that are high in protein because they increase metabolic heat. 

 Slow down. Reduce, eliminate, or reschedule strenuous activity. If you must 
engage in strenuous activity, do so during the coolest part of the day, which 
is usually in the morning between 4:00 a.m. and 7:00 a.m. 

 Stay in the shade. 

 If you experience an emergency, dial 911. 
 
 

 
B. 

 

 
Corporation Counsel: 
 
Corporation Counsel Liston had no formal report this evening. 
 
 

  

http://www.mortongroveil.org/


Minutes of Aug 22, 2023 Board Meeting 

 8

XI. 
 

A. 
 
 
 

TRUSTEES’ REPORTS 
 

Trustee Khan: 
 
Trustee Khan had no formal report this evening. 
 
 

 
B. 

 
 

 
Trustee Minx: 
 
Trustee Minx had no formal report this evening.  
 
 

 
C. 

 
1. 

 
 

 
Trustee Shiba: 
 
Trustee Shiba encouraged everyone to “mark their calendar” for the upcoming Morton Grove 
Sustainability Expo on Saturday, September 9 from 10:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. at the Morton Grove 
Civic Center, 6140 Dempster Street. Enjoy family-friendly activities, kid’s crafts, and connect with 
eco-friendly vendors! New this year will be a “Recycling Fest” at the Expo—a convenient one-stop 
drop-off recycling event for various items. For more information, see the Expo webpage on the  
Village’s website. 
 
 

 
D. 

 
 

 
Trustee Thill: 
 
Trustee Thill had no formal report this evening. 
 
 

 
E. 

 
 
 

 
Trustee Travis: 
 
Trustee Travis reminded everyone that the Summer Photo Contest will end on September 1. Please 
submit your photos of people having summer fun in Morton Grove to Village Hall or via the Village 
website. Photos must be submitted by September 1, 2023. 
 
 

 
F. 

 
 
 

1. 
 
 
 

 
Trustee Witko: 
 
Trustee Witko presented four (4) Ordinances this evening.  
 
Ordinance 23-17, Approving a Special Use Permit for a Nonboarding School and House of  
Worship on a Lot Less Than 3.5 Acres at 7800 Lyons Street in Morton Grove, Illinois. 
 
 



Minutes of Aug 22, 2023 Board Meeting 

 9

XI. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4. 
 

TRUSTEES’ REPORTS (continued) 
 
Trustee Witko moved to adopt Ordinance 23-17, seconded by Trustee Minx. 
 
Motion passed: 6 ayes, 0 nays. 
 
Tr. Khan           aye                               Tr. Minx           aye                Tr. Shiba            aye                          
Tr. Thill            aye                                Tr. Travis         aye                Tr. Witko           aye 
 
 
Ordinance 23-18, Approving a Special Use Permit For a Drive-Through Facility Associated with a 
Financial Institution in a C-1 General Commercial District with Select Waiver for the Property 
Commonly Known as 6210 Dempster Street in Morton Grove, Illinois. 
 
Trustee Witko moved, seconded by Trustee Travis, to adopt Ordinance 23-18. 
 
Motion passed: 6 ayes, 0 nays. 
 
Tr. Khan           aye                               Tr. Minx           aye                Tr. Shiba            aye                          
Tr. Thill            aye                                Tr. Travis         aye                Tr. Witko           aye 
 
 
Ordinance 23-19, Approving a Special Use Permit for a Full-Body Massage Establishment in a 
C-1 General Commercial District for the Property Commonly Known as 9231-35 Waukegan Road 
in Morton Grove, Illinois. 
 
Trustee Witko moved to adopt Ordinance 23-19. Trustee Minx seconded the motion. 
 
Motion passed: 5 ayes, 1 nay. 
 
Tr. Khan           aye                               Tr. Minx           aye                Tr. Shiba            aye                          
Tr. Thill            aye                                Tr. Travis         aye                Tr. Witko           nay 
 
 
Ordinance 23-20, Approving a Special Use Permit for an Assisted Living Facility in a C/R District 
for the Property Commonly Known as 5520 Lincoln Avenue in Morton Grove, Illinois. 
 
Trustee Witko moved, seconded by Trustee Shiba, to adopt Ordinance 23-20. 
 
Motion passed: 6 ayes, 0 nays. 
 
Tr. Khan           aye                               Tr. Minx           aye                Tr. Shiba            aye                          
Tr. Thill            aye                                Tr. Travis         aye                Tr. Witko           aye 
 
 

  



Minutes of Aug 22, 2023 Board Meeting 

 10 

XII. 
 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

NONE 
 

 
XIII. 

 
 
 
 

WARRANTS 
 
Trustee Khan presented the Warrant Register for August 22, 2023 in the amount of $700,889.56.  
She moved to approve the Warrant Register as presented, seconded by Trustee Thill. 
 
Motion passed: 6 ayes, 0 nays. 
 

Tr. Khan           aye                               Tr. Minx           aye                Tr. Shiba            aye                          
Tr. Thill            aye                                Tr. Travis         aye                Tr. Witko           aye 
 
 

XIV. 
 
 

RESIDENTS’ COMMENTS 
 
Rudolf Vilk, 7508 Emerson, said he had received a letter from Mr. Czerwinski dated July 5, 2023 
which was in response to 11 letters sent by Mr. Vilk to the Village. He said the administrator is a 
liar and the Board Members are liars when they say “justice for all” in the Pledge of Allegiance  
because he is not getting justice. He said he has asked for meetings with the mayor and the mayor 
has only granted him one meeting. He said the Village is treating his letters as though they are a 
joke. 

 
 

XV. 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business being brought before the Board, Trustee Minx moved to adjourn 
the meeting, seconded by Trustee Khan. Motion passed unanimously via voice vote. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:36 p.m. 
 
 

 
  



Minutes of Aug 22, 2023 Board Meeting 

 11 

 
 
 
 
 
PASSED this 12th day of September, 2023. 
 
 

Trustee Khan        

Trustee Minx     __________  

Trustee Shiba        

Trustee Thill     __________  

Trustee Travis     __________  

Trustee Witko     __________  
 
 
 
 

APPROVED by me this 12th day of September, 2023. 
 
 
 
 
  
 
Daniel P. DiMaria, Village President 
Board of Trustees, Morton Grove, Illinois 
 
 
 
APPROVED and FILED in my office this 13th day of September, 2023. 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
 
Eileen Harford, Village Clerk 
Village of Morton Grove, Cook County, Illinois 

 
 
 
  Minutes by Teresa Cousar 





   
 

Submitted by - Ralph Czerwinski, Village Administrator    
Reviewed by Hanna Sullivan, Finance Director    
Reviewed by - Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel 
Prepared by – Ralph Ensign, Fire Chief, 

Legislative Summary  
 

Resolution 23-37 
AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF PERSONAL PROPERTY 

OWNED BY THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE 
 

Introduction: September 12, 2023 
  
Purpose: To approve the sale of surplus fire hose to International Fire Equipment, of Richmond, 

California for $2,200.00 
  
Background: The Fire Department regularly checks, and when needed replaces its fire hoses. Recently, 

the department replaced 2,750 feet of hose (49 lengths of 3” hose and 6 lengths of 2 ½” 
hose) that was at least 20 years old and considered by the Fire Chief to be obsolete. Pursuant 
to Ordinance 05-27, adopted by the Village Board on May 23, 2005, obsolete or surplus 
personal property which in the opinion of the Finance Director and the Village 
Administrator, is no longer necessary or useful to the Village, and that has an estimated 
value exceeding one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) and all motor vehicles and real property 
of any value of the Village of Morton Grove may be sold subject to approval by resolution 
of a simple majority of the Village Board of Trustees. The Village Administrator and the 
Finance Director have opined that the old fire hose is no longer necessary, or useful to the 
Village.  
International Fire Equipment, located in Richmond, California has proposed to purchase the 
surplus hose for $2,200.00 and will pay for the shipping costs, provided the Village 
palletizes and shrink wraps the hose. This Resolution will authorize the sale of the surplus 
fire hose to International Fire Equipment for $2,200.00. 
 

Department 
Affected Fire Department, Finance Department 
  
Fiscal Impact: The Village will realize $2,200.00 less the cost to palletize the hose. 
  
Source of Funds: Sales Proceeds 
  
Workload 
Impact: 

The preparation and shipping of the hose will be performed by the Fire Department as a 
part of normal work activities. 

  
Administrator 
Recommendation: Approval as presented 
  
2nd Reading: Not Required 
  
Special 
Requirements:  

 



RESOLUTION 23-37 
 

AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF PERSONAL PROPERTY 
OWNED BY THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE 

 
WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (VILLAGE), located in Cook County, Illinois, 

is a home rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the 1970 Constitution of the 

State of Illinois, can exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government 

affairs, including but not limited to the power to tax and incur debt; and 

WHEREAS, on or about May 23, 2005, the Corporate Authorities adopted Ordinance 05-

27 which provides “obsolete or surplus personal property which is, in the opinion of the Finance 

Director and the Village Administrator, is no longer necessary or useful to the Village, and that 

has an estimated value exceeding one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) and all motor vehicles and 

real property of any value of the Village of Morton Grove shall be sold subject to approval by 

resolution of a simple majority of the Village Board of Trustees”; and.  

 WHEREAS, the Fire Department, after replacing some of its fire hoses, currently has 2,750 

feet of hose (49 lengths of 3” hose and 6 lengths of 2 ½” hose) which is at least 20 years old and 

in the opinion of the Village Administrator, is obsolete, no longer necessary, or useful to the 

Village and is considered surplus property; and  

 WHEREAS, International Fire Equipment, located in Richmond, California has proposed 

to purchase the surplus hose for $2,200.00 and will pay for the shipping costs, provided the Village 

palletizes and shrink wraps the hose; and   

 WHEREAS, the Village Administrator recommends that the surplus hose be sold to 

International Fire Equipment pursuant to its proposal. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, AND ILLINOIS AS 

FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate the foregoing WHEREAS 

clauses into this Resolution as though fully set forth therein thereby making the findings as 

hereinabove set forth. 



SECTION 2: Pursuant to Ordinance 05-27 of the Village of Morton Grove, the Village 

President and Board of Trustees for the Village of Morton Grove find the 2,750 feet of obsolete 

fire hose described in this resolution personal property is surplus property and approves the sale 

of this surplus property to International Fire Equipment, of Richmond, California for $2,200.00. 

SECTION 3: The Village Administrator or his designee is hereby authorized to take all 

steps necessary to complete this sale. 

SECTION 4: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage. 

 

Passed this 12th day of September 2023  
 
Trustee Khan  _____    
Trustee Minx  _____   
Trustee Shiba  _____   
Trustee Thill  _____   
Trustee Travis  _____   
Trustee Witko  _____   
  
Approved by me this 12th day of September 2023  
 
  

____________________________________  
Daniel P. DiMaria, Village President  
Village of Morton Grove  
Cook County, Illinois  

  
Attested and filed in my office this  
13th day of September 2023   
  

  
____________________________________ 
 
Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk  
Village of Morton Grove  
Cook County, Illinois  
 



Submitted by - Ralph Czerwinski, Village Administrator       
Reviewed by - Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel 
Reviewed by James English, Manager, Building and Inspectional Services                           
Prepared by – Tom Friel, Assistant to the Village Administrator 

Legislative Summary  
 

Resolution 23-36 
AUTHORIZING THE RENEWAL OF A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  

BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE AND SAFEBUILT ILLINOIS, LLC  

Introduction: September 12, 2023 
  
Purpose: To approve a three-year agreement with SAFEbuilt, Illinois LLC for plan review, permit and 

health inspectional, code enforcement and related services, with an option for two (2) additional 1-
year renewals.  

  

Background:      The Village has found that utilizing a third-party provider for plan review and inspectional 
services has given the Village access to specialized expertise from certified building, electrical, 
mechanical and health inspectors, plan reviewers, building officials, and code enforcement officers, 
provides supplemental support for larger scale and/or high-volume plan review needs, access to 
additional inspectors, plan reviewers, and code enforcement officers during peak months and the 
flexibility to reduce staffing levels during slower winter months. 
     In July 2018, the Village joined the Municipal Partnering Initiative (MPI) a partnership of 11 
suburban communities to jointly solicit proposals for plan review, inspectional and related services. 
After a competitive bidding process, the MPI communities unanimously selected SAFEbuilt Illinois 
as its preferred contractor. Pursuant to Resolution 19-30 the Village entered into an agreement with 
SAFEbuilt Illinois to provide inspectional, plan review and supplemental code enforcement services 
through December 31, 2020. Pursuant to Resolution 21-22, the Village approved a one-year 
extension of this contract and authorized the Village Administrator, in his discretion, to approve two 
(2) additional one (1) year extensions. Pursuant to Resolution 21-46, the contract was amended to 
include health inspections and related services. SAFEbuilt satisfactorily performed these services, 
and the Village Administrator extended the contract through December 31, 2023. 
     In early 2023, after considering the high quality of service provided by SAFEbuilt Illinois and 
comparing rates paid by other communities for similar services, the MPI chose not to undergo a 
competitive bidding process, and Glenview, Kenilworth, Winnetka, Lincolnwood, and Wilmette 
have or are in process of extending their agreements with SAFEbuilt Illinois for 2024 and beyond. 
Village staff has negotiated a 3-year contract with SAFEbuilt Illinois with price increases limited to 
CPI-U or 3% whichever is lower. This Resolution will authorize a 3-year contract with SAFEbuilt 
and will authorize the Village Administrator to extend the contract if circumstances warrant to renew 
the contract for two (2) additional one (1) year periods through December 31, 2028.  

Department 
Affected Building and Inspectional Services 

  
Fiscal Impact: The 2024 rates are 5% higher than the 2023 rates. Cost increases for 2025 and beyond will be 

limited to 3% or CPI-U whichever is less 
  
Source of Funds: Funds will be budgeted in the 2024 (and successor) Budget(s): Account #02-80-23-55-2140 
  
Workload 
Impact: 

The management of the agreement and staff will be performed by the Village Administrator and 
the Manager of Building and Inspectional Services as a part of normal work activities. 

  
Administrator 
Recommendation: Approval as presented 

  
2nd Reading: Not Required 
  
Special 
Requirements: 

This Resolution requires passage by a 2/3 vote of the Corporate Authorities in order to waive the 
competitive bidding requirements of Section 1-9A-4 of the Village Code 

 



 

RESOLUTION 23-36 
 

AUTHORIZING THE RENEWAL OF A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE AND SAFEBUILT ILLINOIS, LLC 

 WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (VILLAGE), located in Cook County, Illinois, is a home 

rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, can 

exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government affairs, including but not limited 

to the power to tax and incur debt; and 

 WHEREAS, utilizing a third-party provider for plan review and inspectional services has provided 

the following benefits to the Village:  

1. Access to specialized expertise from certified building, electrical, mechanical and health 

inspectors, plan reviewers, building officials, and code enforcement officers;  

2. Supplemental support for larger scale and/or high-volume plan review needs;  

3. Access to additional inspectors, plan reviewers, and code enforcement officers during peak 

months; and  

4. The flexibility to reduce staffing levels during slower winter months; and  

WHEREAS, in July 2018, the Village joined the Municipal Partnering Initiative (MPI) a partnership 

of 11 suburban communities to jointly solicit proposals for plan review, inspectional and related services; 

and 

WHEREAS, after a competitive bidding process, the MPI communities unanimously selected 

SAFEbuilt Illinois as its preferred contractor; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 19-30 the Village entered into an agreement with SAFEbuilt 

Illinois to provide inspectional, plan review and supplemental code enforcement services through December 

31, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 21-22, the Village approved a one-year extension of this contract 

and authorized the Village Administrator, in his discretion, to approve two (2) additional one (1) year 

extensions; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 21-46, the contract was amended to include health inspections 

and related services; and 

WHEREAS, SAFEbuilt satisfactorily performed these services, and the Village Administrator 

extended the contract through December 31, 2023; and 

 WHEREAS, in early 2023, after considering the high quality of service provided by SAFEbuilt 

Illinois and comparing rates paid by other communities for similar services, the MPI chose not to undergo a 

competitive bidding process, and Glenview, Kenilworth, Winnetka, Lincolnwood, and Wilmette have or are 

in the process of extended their agreements with SAFEbuilt Illinois for 2024 and beyond; and  



 

WHEREAS, Village staff has negotiated a 3-year contract with SAFEbuilt Illinois. With a rate 

increase for 2024 of five percent (5%) and increases thereafter limited to CPI-U or 3% whichever is lower; 

and 

 WHEREAS, Village staff recommends, based upon a comparison of pricing proposed by this vendor 

to other area municipalities, that the Village enter into a professional service agreement with the SAFEbuilt 

Illinois, LLC for the period from January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2026 and authorize the Village 

Administrator, at his/her discretion, to renew the contract for two (2) additional one (1) year periods.; and  

 WHEREAS, the Village Board has determined it is in the Village’s best interest to continue to have 

SAFEbuilt provide professional, cost efficient, and reliable services to its residents and businesses; and 

 WHEREAS, this Resolution requires passage by a 2/3 vote of the Corporate Authorities to waive the 

competitive bidding requirements of Section 1-9A-4 of the Village Code. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate the foregoing WHEREAS clauses into 

this Resolution as though fully set forth therein thereby making the findings as hereinabove set forth. 

SECTION 2:  The Village Administrator is hereby authorized to negotiate and execute a contract 

renewal with SAFEbuilt Illinois, LLC for the period from January 1, 2024, through December 31, 2026, and 

if in his/her discretion, circumstances so warrant, to renew the contract for two (2) additional one (1) year 

periods until December 31, 2028. 

SECTION 3: The Village Administrator or his designee is hereby authorized to take all appropriate 

actions to implement the contract and any subsequent renewals. 

SECTION 4: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and upon its passage and approval. 

 
Passed this 12th day of September 2023.  
 
Trustee Minx    

Trustee Shiba    

Trustee Khan    

Trustee Travis    

Trustee Thill    

Trustee Witko    

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Approved by me this 12th day of September 2023. 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Daniel P. DiMaria, Village President 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 
 

 
Approved and filed in my office this  
13th day of September 2023.  
 
 
       
Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 



   
 

Submitted by: Ralph E. Czerwinski, Village Administrator 
Reviewed by: Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel 
Reviewed by: Michael Lukich, Director of Public Works 
Prepared by:   Bill Burns, Superintendent 

Legislative Summary 
 

Resolution 23-38 
 

AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH STERTIL KONI USA INC.  
TO REPLACE THE EXISTING PUBLIC WORKS OMER VEHICLE LIFT  

Introduced: September 12, 2023 
  
Purpose: To authorize the Village Administrator to execute a contract with Stertil Koni Inc. to 

replace the existing OMER vehicle lift in the Public Works Mechanic’s shop.  
  
Background: Village vehicles are serviced and maintained by Public Works vehicle maintenance 

staff. Currently vehicle maintenance staff use an OMER vehicle lift to service Village 
equipment which was installed in 1988.  The OMER vehicle lift has reached the end 
of its useful service life, the sourcing of replacement parts for the lift is very difficult, 
and the equipment is experiencing frequent and prolonged mechanical issues which 
prolong the time needed to service Village vehicles. The Public Works maintenance 
staff has recommended replacing the OMER lift.  
 
The purchase and installation of a new OMER vehicle lift was competitively bid 
through Sourcewell Procurement Agency, Contract # 013020.  Public Works staff 
received two proposals from vendors taking part in Sourcewell contract #013020, 
with Stertil Koni USA Inc. providing the lowest and most appropriate proposal.  

  
 Departments 
 or Groups Affected 

Public Works Vehicle Maintenance and Building Maintenance staff 

  
Fiscal Impact: $176,817.18 
  
Source of Funds: 2023 General Capital Improvements to Buildings Account Numbers 02-80-24-57-

1032 
  

Workload Impact: The Public Works Department will perform the management and implementation 
of the project as part of their normal work activities. 

  
Administrator 
Recommendation: 

Approval as presented. 

  
Second Reading: Not Required 
  
Special Considerations 
or Requirements: 

None 
 

  
 



RESOLUTION 23-38 
 

AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH STERTIL KONI USA INC. TO REPLACE THE 
EXISTING PUBLIC WORKS OMER VEHICLE LIFT 

  

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (Village), located in Cook County, Illinois, is a home 

rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, 

can exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government affairs, including but not 

limited to the power to tax, purchase, and incur debt; and 

 WHEREAS, The Public Works Vehicle Maintenance staff services vehicles assigned to the 

Village Public Works, Police Department, Fire Department, and the Village Hall; and 

 WHEREAS, The OMER vehicle lift used to service these vehicles was installed in 1988, d

 ue to frequent breakdowns and challenges in sourcing repair parts for the OMER vehicle lift, 

 Public Works staff has determined the OMER vehicle lift has reached the end of its useful service 

life, and 

WHEREAS, the purchase and installation services for the vehicle lift was competitively bid 

through the Sourcewell Procurement Agency, Contract #013020 and  

WHEREAS, proposals were received and reviewed from two vendors participating in Sourcewell 

Procurement Agency’s contract # 013020; Stertil Koni USA Inc. contract # 013020-SKI and Mohawk 

Lifts, Inc. contract # 013020-MRL; and 

Firm     Locations    Amount 

Stertil Koni USA Inc.     Stevensville, Maryland  $176,817.17 

Mohawk Lifts, LLC     Amsterdam, New York  $177,007.95 

 

WHEREAS, Stertil Koni USA Inc. provided the lowest and most appropriate bid (See Exhibit A) 

and 

WHEREAS, references furnished by Stertil Koni USA Inc. were investigated and are favorable; 

and, 

 WHEREAS, funding for the above work is available in the Village of Morton Grove 2023 

Adopted Budget in Account 02-80-24-55-1032 in the amount of $180,000.00. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate the foregoing WHEREAS clauses 

into this Resolution as though fully set forth therein thereby making the findings as hereinabove set forth. 



 SECTION 2: The Corporate Authorities accept the Quote of Stertil Koni USA Inc. of 200 Long 

Conoe Circle Stevensville, MD 21666. 

SECTION 3: The Village Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a contract with Stertil 

Koni USA, Inc. for Public Works Vehicle Lift Replacement in the amount of $176,817.18 consistent with 

Exhibit A-1. 

SECTION 4: The Village Administrator and Director of Public Works and their designees are 

authorized to take all steps necessary to implement the contract with Stertil Koni,USA, Inc. 

 SECTION 5: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and approval. 

 
Passed this 12th day of September 2023 

Trustee Khan    

Trustee Minx    

Trustee Shiba    

Trustee Thill    

Trustee Travis    

Trustee Witko    

 

Approved by me this 12th day of September 2023 

 

 
____________________________________ 
Daniel P. DiMaria, Village President 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 

 
Attested and Filed in my office this 
13th day of September 2023 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 



 

Quote

 

Stertil-Koni USA, Inc. Quote # 1049
200 Log Canoe Circle Date 08/15/2023
Stevensville, MD 21666 Expires  09/14/2023
T: 410.643.9001 RSM Carl Boyer
F: 410.643.8901    
 

Billing Address Village of Morton Grove   Shipping Address Village of Morton Grove 
  Bill Burns     Bill Burns
  6101 Capulina Ave     7840 Nagle Ave
  Morton Grove, IL     Morton GRove, IL
  60053     60053
  bburns@mortongroveil.org     bburns@mortongroveil.org
  +1 847-815-1662     +1 847-815-1662
 

Sourcewell Contract #: 013020-SKI
  Item Qty Price Discount Total

  

41404000

SKY .780 / 250 - 78,000 lbs, platform length 30'; surface mount
with multifunctional flexible approach ramps 77" + end stops

 

1.00

 

$132,364.00

 

0.00%  

 

$132,364.00

  

39618110

JB-200-2 air/hydraulic, capacity 44,000 lbs, without support arms,
width 33.5"-45.28" w/mechanical lock

 

1.00

 

$13,013.00

 

0.00%  

 

$13,013.00

  

41407151

Remote Control, Not UL Approved, 32' 10" cable

 

1.00

 

$2,101.00

 

0.00%  

 

$2,101.00

  

OPVL45185

Stertil-Guard Anti-skid,  applied at the factory for medium platforms
lengths from 8 mtr. / 26' to 9 mtr. / 30'

 

1.00

 

$4,246.00

 

0.00%  

 

$4,246.00

  

39509100

Air kit for ST 4120, ST 4175, ST 4250 and SKYLIFT; with 8' air
pipe, brackets and one outlet (Depending on length of lift, more
than one kit may be needed)

 

1.00

 

$478.00

 

0.00%  

 

$478.00

 1 / 3



  

41409120

LED lighting set, UL approved for SKYLIFT, 30' & 33' platform, 10
LED fixtures, 1 power transformer and cable set, 110-220V

 

1.00

 

$4,664.00

 

0.00%  

 

$4,664.00

  

39616030

Set support arms for SKY 200 & 250 and 4250 after June 2015

 

1.00

 

$1,081.48

 

0.00%  

 

$1,081.48

  

9114200

FG200 8" metal extension adapter, capacity 22,000  lbs.

 

1.00

 

$62.33

 

0.00%  

 

$62.33

  

9113240

US-130 U-saddle adapter, capacity 13,200  lbs., width 5.125"

 

1.00

 

$94.37

 

0.00%  

 

$94.37

  

Miscellaneous Non Taxable

Labor to install lift.

 

1.00

 

$9,500.00

 

0.00%  

 

$9,500.00

  

42599013

Set chemical anchors and shims for ST4.660/ST 4250

 

1.00

 

$713.00

 

0.00%  

 

$713.00

  

Miscellaneous Non Taxable

Labor to remove and haul off lift.

 

1.00

 

$6,000.00

 

0.00%  

 

$6,000.00

 

 

  

 

  Subtotal: $174,317.18
  Discount: ($0.00)
  Tax: $0.00

 Comments Shipping: $2,500.00 

 Sourcewell Member Account # 43051

SLE (Safetylane Equipment) SK (Stertil-Koni)

SLE will install the lift and control console to the properly prepared location with
qualified and trained personnel.
SLE will provide manufactures data sheets.
SLE will provide detailed shop drawings for contractor.
SLE will provide operation and  maintenance manual.

Total $176,817.18

 2 / 3



SLE will provide training.
SLE/SK will warranty lift for 2 years parts and 1 year labor.
SLE will provide site work per provided drawings.

The foundation, concrete will be repaired by customer if needed.
The conduit, utilities, and piping supplied to the lift by customer.
 

 

Subcontract: 

Local Distributor:

Safetylane Equipment Corporation, Inc.
Mike Roberts
mikeroberts@usalift.com

  Terms and Conditions

1. Product availability and proposed delivery date provided ARO
2. Purchase Orders MUST be issued to Stertil-Koni USA, Inc., not the Local Distributor
3. Please submit Purchase Orders to orders@stertil-koni.com 
4. Customer is responsible for paying sales tax, if any, when applicable.
 

 3 / 3



013020-SKI 
 

1 
Rev. 4/2019 
 

 
 

Solicitation Number: RFP#013020 
 

CONTRACT 
 
 
This Contract is between Sourcewell, 202 12th Street Northeast, P.O. Box 219, Staples, MN 
56479 (Sourcewell) and Stertil-Koni USA Inc., 200 Log Canoe Circle, Stevensville, MD 21666 
(Vendor). 

  
Sourcewell is a State of Minnesota local government agency and service cooperative created 
under the laws of the State of Minnesota (Minnesota Statutes Section 123A.21) that offers 
cooperative procurement solutions to its members. Participation is open to all levels of 
governmental entity, higher education, K-12 education, nonprofit, tribal government, and other 
public entities located in the United States and Canada.     

  
Vendor desires to contract with Sourcewell to provide equipment, products, or services to 
Sourcewell and its Members (Members).  

 
1. TERM OF CONTRACT 

 
A. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Contract is effective upon the date of the final signature below.  
 
B. EXPIRATION DATE AND EXTENSION. This Contract expires April 13, 2024, unless it is 
cancelled sooner pursuant to Article 24. This Contract may be extended up to one additional 
one-year period upon request of Sourcewell and with written agreement by Vendor. 
 
C. SURVIVAL OF TERMS. Articles 11 through 16 survive the expiration or cancellation of this 
Contract.  
 

2. EQUIPMENT, PRODUCTS, OR SERVICES 
 
A. EQUIPMENT, PRODUCTS, OR SERVICES. Vendor will provide the Equipment, Products, or 
Services as stated in its Proposal submitted under the Solicitation Number listed above. 
Vendor’s Equipment, Products, or Services Proposal (Proposal) is attached and incorporated 
into this Contract.    
 
All Equipment and Products provided under this Contract must be new/current model.  Vendor 
may offer close-out or refurbished Equipment or Products if they are clearly indicated in 
Vendor’s product and pricing list. Unless agreed to by the Member in advance, Equipment or 
Products must be delivered as operational to the Member’s site.     



013020-SKI 
 

2 
Rev. 4/2019 
 

 
This Contract offers an indefinite quantity of sales, and while substantial volume is anticipated, 
sales and sales volume are not guaranteed.   
 
B. WARRANTY. Vendor warrants that all Equipment, Products, and Services furnished are free 
from liens and encumbrances, and are free from defects in design, materials, and workmanship. 
In addition, Vendor warrants the Equipment, Products, and Services are suitable for and will 
perform in accordance with the ordinary use for which they are intended. Vendor’s dealers and 
distributors must agree to assist the Member in reaching a resolution in any dispute over 
warranty terms with the manufacturer.  Any manufacturer’s warranty that is effective past the 
expiration of the Vendor’s warranty will be passed on to the Member.   
 
C. DEALERS AND DISTRIBUTORS. Upon Contract execution, Vendor will make available to 
Sourcewell a means to validate or authenticate Vendor’s authorized Distributors/Dealers 
relative to the Equipment, Products, and Services related to this Contract. This list may be 
updated from time-to-time and is incorporated into this Contract by reference. It is the 
Vendor’s responsibility to ensure Sourcewell receives the most current version of this list.  
 

3. PRICING 
 
All Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract will be priced as stated in Vendor’s 
Proposal.  
 
Regardless of the payment method chosen by the Member, the total cost associated with any 
purchase option of the Equipment, Products, or Services must always be disclosed in the pricing 
quote to the applicable Member at the time of purchase.   
 
When providing pricing quotes to Members, all pricing quoted must reflect a Member’s total 
cost of acquisition. This means that the quoted cost is for delivered Equipment, Products, and 
Services that are operational for their intended purpose, and includes all costs to the Member’s 
requested delivery location.   
 
A. SHIPPING AND SHIPPING COSTS. All delivered Equipment and Products must be properly 
packaged. Damaged Equipment and Products may be rejected. If the damage is not readily 
apparent at the time of delivery, Vendor must permit the Equipment and Products to be 
returned within a reasonable time at no cost to Sourcewell or its Members. Members reserve 
the right to inspect the Equipment and Products at a reasonable time after delivery where 
circumstances or conditions prevent effective inspection of the Equipment and Products at the 
time of delivery. 
   
Vendor must arrange for and pay for the return shipment on Equipment and Products that arrive 
in a defective or inoperable condition.  
 



013020-SKI 
 

3 
Rev. 4/2019 
 

Sourcewell may declare the Vendor in breach of this Contract if the Vendor intentionally 
delivers substandard or inferior Equipment or Products. In the event of the delivery of 
nonconforming Equipment and Products, the Member will notify the Vendor as soon as 
possible and the Vendor will replace nonconforming Equipment and Products with conforming 
Equipment and Products that are acceptable to the Member. 
 
B. SALES TAX. Each Member is responsible for supplying the Vendor with valid tax-exemption 
certification(s). When ordering, Members must indicate if it is a tax-exempt entity.  
 
C. HOT LIST PRICING. At any time during this Contract, Vendor may offer a specific selection 
of Equipment, Products, or Services at discounts greater than those listed in the Contract. 
When Vendor determines it will offer Hot List Pricing, it must be submitted electronically to 
Sourcewell in a line-item format. Equipment, Products, or Services may be added or removed 
from the Hot List at any time through a Sourcewell Price and Product Change Form as defined 
in Article 4 below.   
 
Hot List program and pricing may also be used to discount and liquidate close-out and 
discontinued Equipment and Products as long as those close-out and discontinued items are 
clearly identified as such. Current ordering process and administrative fees apply. Hot List 
Pricing must be published and made available to all Members. 
 

4. PRODUCT AND PRICING CHANGE REQUESTS 
 

Vendor may request Equipment, Product, or Service changes, additions, or deletions at any 
time. All requests must be made in writing by submitting a signed Sourcewell Price and Product 
Change Request Form to the assigned Sourcewell Contract Administrator. This form is available 
from the assigned Sourcewell Contract Administrator. At a minimum, the request must:  
 

 Identify the applicable Sourcewell contract number 
 Clearly specify the requested change 
 Provide sufficient detail to justify the requested change 
 Individually list all Equipment, Products, or Services affected by the requested 

change, along with the requested change (e.g., addition, deletion, price change) 
 Include a complete restatement of pricing documentation in Microsoft Excel 

with the effective date of the modified pricing, or product addition or deletion. The 
new pricing restatement must include all Equipment, Products, and Services offered, 
even for those items where pricing remains unchanged. 

 
A fully executed Sourcewell Price and Product Request Form will be become an 
amendment to this Contract and be incorporated by reference.  

 



013020-SKI 
 

4 
Rev. 4/2019 
 

5. MEMBERSHIP, CONTRACT ACCESS, AND MEMBER REQUIREMENTS 
  
A. MEMBERSHIP. Membership in Sourcewell is open to public and nonprofit entities across the 
United States and Canada; such as municipal, state/province, K-12 and higher education, tribal 
government, and other public entities.   
 
The benefits of this Contract should be available to all Members that can legally access the 
Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract. A Member’s authority to access this 
Contract is determined through its cooperative purchasing, interlocal, or joint powers laws. Any 
entity accessing benefits of this Contract will be considered a Service Member of Sourcewell 
during such time of access. Vendor understands that a Member’s use of this Contract is at the 
Member’s sole convenience and Members reserve the right to obtain like Equipment, Products, 
or Services from any other source. 
 
Vendor is responsible for familiarizing its sales and service forces with Sourcewell membership 
requirements and documentation and will encourage potential members to join Sourcewell.  
Sourcewell reserves the right to add and remove Members to its roster during the term of this 
Contract.   
 
B. PUBLIC FACILITIES. Vendor’s employees may be required to perform work at government-
owned facilities, including schools. Vendor’s employees and agents must conduct themselves in 
a professional manner while on the premises, and in accordance with Member policies and 
procedures, and all applicable laws.   
 

6. MEMBER ORDERING AND PURCHASE ORDERS 
 
A. PURCHASE ORDERS AND PAYMENT. To access the contracted Equipment, Products, or 
Services under this Contract, Member must clearly indicate to Vendor that it intends to access 
this Contract; however, order flow and procedure will be developed jointly between Sourcewell 
and Vendor. Typically a Member will issue a purchase order directly to Vendor. Members may 
use their own forms for purchase orders, but it should clearly note the applicable Sourcewell 
contract number. Members will be solely responsible for payment and Sourcewell will have no 
liability for any unpaid invoice of any Member.   
 
B. ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS. Additional terms and conditions to a purchase order 
may be negotiated between a Member and Vendor, such as job or industry-specific 
requirements, legal requirements (such as affirmative action or immigration status 
requirements), or specific local policy requirements. Any negotiated additional terms and 
conditions must never be less favorable to the Member than what is contained in Vendor’s 
Proposal. 
 
C. PERFORMANCE BOND. If requested by a Member, Vendor will provide a performance bond 
that meets the requirements set forth in the Member’s purchase order.  

 



013020-SKI 
 

5 
Rev. 4/2019 
 

D. SPECIALIZED SERVICE REQUIREMENTS. In the event that the Member requires service or 
specialized performance requirements (such as e-commerce specifications, specialized delivery 
requirements, or other specifications and requirements) not addressed in this Contract, the 
Member and the Vendor may enter into a separate, standalone agreement, apart from this 
Contract. Sourcewell, including its agents and employees, will not be made a party to a claim 
for breach of such agreement.   
 
E. TERMINATION OF PURCHASE ORDERS. Members may terminate a purchase order, in 
whole or in part, immediately upon notice to Vendor in the event of any of the following 
events:   
 

1. The Member fails to receive funding or appropriation from its governing body at 
levels sufficient to pay for the goods to be purchased; 
2. Federal or state laws or regulations prohibit the purchase or change the 
Member’s requirements; or 
3. Vendor commits any material breach of this Contract or the additional terms 
agreed to between the Vendor and a Member. 

 
F. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE. The governing law and venue for any action related to a 
Member’s purchase order will be determined by the Member making the purchase.   
 

7. CUSTOMER SERVICE 
 
A. PRIMARY ACCOUNT REPRESENTATIVE. Vendor will assign an Account Representative to 
Sourcewell for this Contract and must provide prompt notice to Sourcewell if that person is 
changed. The Account Representative will be responsible for: 
  

 Maintenance and management of this Contract; 
 Timely response to all Sourcewell and Member inquiries; and 
 Business reviews to Sourcewell and Members, if applicable. 

 
B. BUSINESS REVIEWS. Vendor must perform a minimum of one business review with 
Sourcewell per contract year. The business review will cover sales to members, pricing and 
contract terms, administrative fees, supply issues, customer issues, and any other necessary 
information.  
 

8. REPORT ON CONTRACT SALES ACTIVITY AND ADMINISTRATIVE FEE PAYMENT 
 
A. CONTRACT SALES ACTIVITY REPORT. Each calendar quarter, Vendor must provide a contract 
sales activity report (Report) to the Sourcewell Contract Administrator assigned to this 
Contract. A Report must be provided regardless of the number or amount of sales during that 
quarter (i.e., if there are no sales, Vendor must submit a report indicating no sales were made).  
 



013020-SKI 
 

6 
Rev. 4/2019 
 

The Report must contain the following fields: 
 

 Customer Name (e.g., City of Staples Highway Department); 
 Customer Physical Street Address; 
 Customer City; 
 Customer State; 
 Customer Zip Code; 
 Customer Contact Name; 
 Customer Contact Email Address; 
 Customer Contact Telephone Number; 
 Sourcewell Assigned Entity/Member Number; 
 Item Purchased Description; 
 Item Purchased Price;  
 Sourcewell Administrative Fee Applied; and 
 Date Purchase was invoiced/sale was recognized as revenue by Vendor. 

 
B. ADMINISTRATIVE FEE. In consideration for the support and services provided by Sourcewell, 
the Vendor will pay an administrative fee to Sourcewell on all Equipment, Products, and 
Services provided to Members. The Vendor will submit a check payable to Sourcewell for the 
percentage of administrative fee stated in the Proposal multiplied by the total sales of all 
Equipment, Products, and Services purchased by Members under this Contract during each 
calendar quarter. Payments should note the Sourcewell-assigned contract number in the memo 
and must be mailed to the address above “Attn: Accounts Receivable.” Payments must be 
received no later than forty-five (45) calendar days after the end of each calendar quarter. 

 
Vendor agrees to cooperate with Sourcewell in auditing transactions under this Contract to 
ensure that the administrative fee is paid on all items purchased under this Contract. 

 
In the event the Vendor is delinquent in any undisputed administrative fees, Sourcewell 
reserves the right to cancel this Contract and reject any proposal submitted by the Vendor in 
any subsequent solicitation. In the event this Contract is cancelled by either party prior to the 
Contract’s expiration date, the administrative fee payment will be due no more than thirty (30) 
days from the cancellation date.  

 
9. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

 
Sourcewell's Authorized Representative is its Chief Procurement Officer.   

 
Vendor’s Authorized Representative is the person named in the Vendor’s Proposal. If Vendor’s 
Authorized Representative changes at any time during this Contract, Vendor must promptly 
notify Sourcewell in writing. 

 



013020-SKI 
 

7 
Rev. 4/2019 
 

10. ASSIGNMENT, AMENDMENTS, WAIVER, AND CONTRACT COMPLETE 
 
A. ASSIGNMENT. Neither the Vendor nor Sourcewell may assign or transfer any rights or 
obligations under this Contract without the prior consent of the parties and a fully executed 
assignment agreement. Such consent will not be unreasonably withheld.     
 
B. AMENDMENTS. Any amendment to this Contract must be in writing and will not be effective 
until it has been fully executed by the parties.   

 
C. FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION. Sourcewell reserves the right to amend this Contract 
to include requirements relating to any subsequent changes affecting the use of inter-
governmental cooperative purchasing agreements by FTA grant recipients.   
 
D. WAIVER. If either party fails to enforce any provision of this Contract, that failure does not 
waive the provision or the right to enforce it. 
 
E. CONTRACT COMPLETE. This Contract contains all negotiations and agreements between 
Sourcewell and Vendor. No other understanding regarding this Contract, whether written or 
oral, may be used to bind either party. 
 
F. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES. The relationship of the parties is one of independent 
contractors, each free to exercise judgment and discretion with regard to the conduct of their 
respective businesses. This Contract does not create a partnership, joint venture, master-
servant, principal-agent, or any other relationship.  

 
11. LIABILITY 

  
Vendor must indemnify, save, and hold Sourcewell and its Members, including their agents and 
employees, harmless from any claims or causes of action, including attorneys’ fees, arising out 
of the performance of this Contract by the Vendor or its agents or employees; this 
indemnification includes injury or death to person(s) or property alleged to have been caused 
by some defect in the Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract to the extent the 
Equipment, Product, or Service has been used according to its specifications. 

 
12. AUDITS 

 
Sourcewell reserves the right to review the books, records, documents, and accounting 
procedures and practices of the Vendor relevant to this Contract for a minimum of six (6) years 
from the end of this Contract. This clause extends to Members as it relates to business 
conducted by that Member under this Contract. 
 



013020-SKI 
 

8 
Rev. 4/2019 
 

13. GOVERNMENT DATA PRACTICES 
 
Vendor and Sourcewell must comply with the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, 
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 13, as it applies to all data provided by or provided to Sourcewell 
under this Contract and as it applies to all data created, collected, received, stored, used, 
maintained, or disseminated by the Vendor under this Contract.  
 
If the Vendor receives a request to release the data referred to in this article, the Vendor must 
immediately notify Sourcewell and Sourcewell will assist with how the Vendor should respond 
to the request. 
 

14. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 
 
As applicable, Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Sourcewell and its Members 
against any and all suits, claims, judgments, and costs instituted or recovered against 
Sourcewell or Members by any person on account of the use of any Equipment or Products by 
Sourcewell or its Members supplied by Vendor in violation of applicable patent or copyright 
laws. 

 
15. PUBLICITY, MARKETING, AND ENDORSEMENT 

 
A. PUBLICITY. Any publicity regarding the subject matter of this Contract must not be released 
without prior written approval from the Authorized Representatives. Publicity includes notices, 
informational pamphlets, press releases, research, reports, signs, and similar public notices 
prepared by or for the Vendor individually or jointly with others, or any subcontractors, with 
respect to the program, publications, or services provided resulting from this Contract. 
 
B. MARKETING. Any direct advertising, marketing, or offers with Members must be approved 
by Sourcewell. Materials should be sent to the Sourcewell Contract Administrator assigned to 
this Contract.   
 
C. ENDORSEMENT. The Vendor must not claim that Sourcewell endorses its Equipment, 
Products, or Services. 

 
16. GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION, AND VENUE 

 
Minnesota law governs this Contract. Venue for all legal proceedings out of this Contract, or its 
breach, must be in the appropriate state court in Todd County or federal court in Fergus Falls, 
Minnesota.  
 



013020-SKI 
 

9 
Rev. 4/2019 
 

17. FORCE MAJEURE 
 
Neither party to this Contract will be held responsible for delay or default caused by acts of God 
or other conditions that are beyond that party’s reasonable control. A party defaulting under 
this provision must provide the other party prompt written notice of the default. 
 

18. SEVERABILITY 
 
If any provision of this Contract is found to be illegal, unenforceable, or void then both 
Sourcewell and Vendor will be relieved of all obligations arising under such provisions. If the 
remainder of this Contract is capable of performance, it will not be affected by such declaration 
or finding and must be fully performed. 

 
19. PERFORMANCE, DEFAULT, AND REMEDIES 

 
A. PERFORMANCE. During the term of this Contract, the parties will monitor performance and 
address unresolved contract issues as follows:  
 

1. Notification. The parties must promptly notify each other of any known dispute 
and work in good faith to resolve such dispute within a reasonable period of time. If 
necessary, Sourcewell and the Vendor will jointly develop a short briefing document 
that describes the issue(s), relevant impact, and positions of both parties.  
2. Escalation. If parties are unable to resolve the issue in a timely manner, as 
specified above, either Sourcewell or Vendor may escalate the resolution of the issue to 
a higher level of management. The Vendor will have thirty (30) calendar days to cure an 
outstanding issue.  
3. Performance while Dispute is Pending. Notwithstanding the existence of a 
dispute, the Vendor must continue without delay to carry out all of its responsibilities 
under the Contract that are not affected by the dispute. If the Vendor fails to continue 
without delay to perform its responsibilities under the Contract, in the accomplishment 
of all undisputed work, any additional costs incurred by Sourcewell and/or its Members 
as a result of such failure to proceed will be borne by the Vendor. 

 
B. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. Either of the following constitutes cause to declare this Contract, 
or any Member order under this Contract, in default:   

 
1. Nonperformance of contractual requirements, or  
2. A material breach of any term or condition of this Contract.   

 
Written notice of default and a reasonable opportunity to cure must be issued by the party 
claiming default. Time allowed for cure will not diminish or eliminate any liability for liquidated 
or other damages. If the default remains after the opportunity for cure, the non-defaulting 
party may: 
 



013020-SKI 
 

10 
Rev. 4/2019 
 

 Exercise any remedy provided by law or equity, or 
 Terminate the Contract or any portion thereof, including any orders issued 

against the Contract. 
 

20. INSURANCE 
  
A. REQUIREMENTS. At its own expense, Vendor must maintain insurance policy(ies) in effect at 
all times during the performance of this Contract with insurance company(ies) licensed or 
authorized to do business in the State of Minnesota having an “AM BEST” rating of A- or better, 
with coverage and limits of insurance not less than the following:  

 
1. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability.  
Workers’ Compensation: As required by any applicable law or regulation.  
Employer's Liability Insurance: must be provided in amounts not less than listed below: 

 Minimum limits: 
$500,000 each accident for bodily injury by accident 
$500,000 policy limit for bodily injury by disease 
$500,000 each employee for bodily injury by disease 

  
2. Commercial General Liability Insurance. Vendor will maintain insurance covering 
its operations, with coverage on an occurrence basis, and must be subject to terms no 
less broad than the Insurance Services Office (“ISO”) Commercial General Liability Form 
CG0001 (2001 or newer edition). At a minimum, coverage must include liability arising 
from premises, operations, bodily injury and property damage, independent 
contractors, products-completed operations including construction defect, contractual 
liability, blanket contractual liability, and personal injury and advertising injury. All 
required limits, terms and conditions of coverage must be maintained during the term 
of this Contract. 

 Minimum Limits:  
$1,000,000 each occurrence Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
$1,000,000 Personal and Advertising Injury 
$2,000,000 aggregate for Products-Completed operations  
$2,000,000 general aggregate 

 
3. Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance. During the term of this Contract, 
Vendor will maintain insurance covering all owned, hired, and non-owned automobiles 
in limits of liability not less than indicated below. The coverage must be subject to terms 
no less broad than ISO Business Auto Coverage Form CA 0001 (2010 edition or newer). 

 Minimum Limits: 
$1,000,000 each accident, combined single limit 

 
4. Umbrella Insurance. During the term of this Contract, Vendor will maintain 
umbrella coverage over Workers’ Compensation, Commercial General Liability, and 
Commercial Automobile. 



013020-SKI 
 

11 
Rev. 4/2019 
 

 Minimum Limits: 
$2,000,000  

 
5. Professional/Technical, Errors and Omissions, and/or Miscellaneous Liability. 
During the term of this Contract, Vendor will maintain coverage for all claims the Vendor 
may become legally obligated to pay resulting from any actual or alleged negligent act, 
error, or omission related to Vendor’s professional services required under this 
Contract.  

 Minimum Limits:  
$2,000,000 per claim or event 
$2,000,000 – annual aggregate 

 
6. Network Security and Privacy Liability Insurance. During the term of this 
Contract, Vendor will maintain coverage for network security and privacy liability. The 
coverage may be endorsed on another form of liability coverage or written on a 
standalone policy. The insurance must cover claims which may arise from failure of 
Vendor’s security resulting in, but not limited to, computer attacks, unauthorized 
access, disclosure of not public data – including but not limited to, confidential or 
private information, transmission of a computer virus, or denial of service.  

 Minimum limits:  
$2,000,000 per occurrence 
$2,000,000 annual aggregate 

 
Failure of Vendor to maintain the required insurance will constitute a material breach entitling 
Sourcewell to immediately terminate this Contract for default.  
 
B. CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE. Prior to commencing under this Contract, Vendor must 
furnish to Sourcewell a certificate of insurance, as evidence of the insurance required under this 
Contract. Prior to expiration of the policy(ies), renewal certificates must be mailed to 
Sourcewell, 202 12th Street Northeast, P.O. Box 219, Staples, MN 56479 or sent to the 
Sourcewell Contract Administrator assigned to this Contract. The certificates must be signed by 
a person authorized by the insurer(s) to bind coverage on their behalf. All policies must include 
there will be no cancellation, suspension, non-renewal, or reduction of coverage without thirty 
(30) days’ prior written notice to the Vendor.   
 
Upon request, Vendor must provide to Sourcewell copies of applicable policies and 
endorsements, within ten (10) days of a request. Failure to request certificates of insurance by 
Sourcewell, or failure of Vendor to provide certificates of insurance, in no way limits or relieves 
Vendor of its duties and responsibilities in this Contract.  
 
C. ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT AND PRIMARY AND NON-CONTRIBUTORY 
INSURANCE CLAUSE. Vendor agrees to name Sourcewell and its Members, including their 
officers, agents, and employees, as an additional insured under the Vendor’s commercial 
general liability insurance policy with respect to liability arising out of activities, “operations,” or 



013020-SKI 
 

12 
Rev. 4/2019 
 

“work” performed by or on behalf of Vendor, and products and completed operations of 
Vendor. The policy provision(s) or endorsement(s) must further provide that coverage is 
primary and not excess over or contributory with any other valid, applicable, and collectible 
insurance or self-insurance in force for the additional insureds.   
 
D. WAIVER OF SUBROGATION. Vendor waives and must require (by endorsement or 
otherwise) all its insurers to waive subrogation rights against Sourcewell and other additional 
insureds for losses paid under the insurance policies required by this Contract or other 
insurance applicable to the Vendor or its subcontractors. The waiver must apply to all 
deductibles and/or self-insured retentions applicable to the required or any other insurance 
maintained by the Vendor or its subcontractors. Where permitted by law, Vendor must require 
similar written express waivers of subrogation and insurance clauses from each of its 
subcontractors.   
 
E. UMBRELLA/EXCESS LIABILITY. The limits required by this Contract can be met by either 
providing a primary policy or in combination with umbrella/excess liability policy(ies). 
 
F. SELF-INSURED RETENTIONS. Any self-insured retention in excess of $10,000 is subject to 
Sourcewell’s approval.  
 

21. COMPLIANCE 
 
A. LAWS AND REGULATIONS. All Equipment, Products, or Services provided under this 
Contract must comply fully with applicable federal laws and regulations, and with the laws in 
the states and provinces in which the Equipment, Products, or Services are sold.  
 
B. LICENSES. Vendor must maintain a valid status on all required federal, state, and local 
licenses, bonds, and permits required for the operation of the business that the Vendor 
conducts with Sourcewell and Members. 

 
22. BANKRUPTCY, DEBARMENT, OR SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION 

 
Vendor certifies and warrants that it is not in bankruptcy or that it has previously disclosed in 
writing certain information to Sourcewell related to bankruptcy actions. If at any time during 
this Contract Vendor declares bankruptcy, Vendor must immediately notify Sourcewell in 
writing. 
 
Vendor certifies and warrants that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, 
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from programs 
operated by the State of Minnesota, the United States federal government, or any Member. 
Vendor certifies and warrants that neither it nor its principals have been convicted of a criminal 
offense related to the subject matter of this Contract. Vendor further warrants that it will 
provide immediate written notice to Sourcewell if this certification changes at any time. 
 



013020-SKI 
 

13 
Rev. 4/2019 
 

23. PROVISIONS FOR NON-UNITED STATES FEDERAL ENTITY PROCUREMENTS UNDER 
UNITED STATES FEDERAL AWARDS OR OTHER AWARDS 

 
Members that use United States federal grant or FEMA funds to purchase goods or services 
from this Contract may be subject to additional requirements including the procurement 
standards of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. § 200. Members may also require additional requirements based 
on specific funding specifications. Within this Article, all references to “federal” should be 
interpreted to mean the United States federal government. The following list only applies when 
a Member accesses Vendor’s Equipment, Products, or Services with United States federal 
funds. 
 
A. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY. Except as otherwise provided under 41 C.F.R. § 60, all 
contracts that meet the definition of “federally assisted construction contract” in 41 C.F.R. § 60-
1.3 must include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 C.F.R. §60-1.4(b), in 
accordance with Executive Order 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity” (30 FR 12319, 
12935, 3 C.F.R. §, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, “Amending 
Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,” and implementing 
regulations at 41 C.F.R. § 60, “Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal 
Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor.” The equal opportunity clause is incorporated 
herein by reference. 
 
B. DAVIS-BACON ACT, AS AMENDED (40 U.S.C. § 3141-3148). When required by federal 
program legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-
federal entities must include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. § 
3141-3144, and 3146-3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. § 5, 
“Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted 
Construction”). In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to 
laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage 
determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay 
wages not less than once a week. The non-federal entity must place a copy of the current 
prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The 
decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the 
wage determination. The non-federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to 
the federal awarding agency. The contracts must also include a provision for compliance with 
the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C. § 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor 
regulations (29 C.F.R. § 3, “Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work 
Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States”). The Act provides that 
each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person 
employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the 
compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The non-federal entity must report 
all suspected or reported violations to the federal awarding agency. Vendor must be in 
compliance with all applicable Davis-Bacon Act provisions. 
 



013020-SKI 
 

14 
Rev. 4/2019 
 

C. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT (40 U.S.C. § 3701-3708). Where 
applicable, all contracts awarded by the non-federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve 
the employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 
U.S.C. § 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. § 5). 
Under 40 U.S.C. § 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of 
every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess 
of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of 
not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 
hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. § 3704 are applicable to construction 
work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or 
under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements 
do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the 
open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence. This provision is 
hereby incorporated by reference into this Contract. Vendor certifies that during the term of an 
award for all contracts by Sourcewell resulting from this procurement process, Vendor must 
comply with applicable requirements as referenced above. 
 
D. RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS MADE UNDER A CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT. If the federal award 
meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 C.F.R. § 401.2(a) and the recipient or 
subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization 
regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, 
developmental, or research work under that “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient 
must comply with the requirements of 37 C.F.R. § 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit 
Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative 
Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency. Vendor 
certifies that during the term of an award for all contracts by Sourcewell resulting from this 
procurement process, Vendor must comply with applicable requirements as referenced above. 
 
E. CLEAN AIR ACT (42 U.S.C. § 7401-7671Q.) AND THE FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL 
ACT (33 U.S.C. § 1251-1387). Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of $150,000 require 
the non-federal award to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations 
issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 7401- 7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution 
Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. § 1251- 1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal 
awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Vendor 
certifies that during the term of this Contract will comply with applicable requirements as 
referenced above. 
 
F. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (EXECUTIVE ORDERS 12549 AND 12689). A contract award 
(see 2 C.F.R. § 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the government wide exclusions 
in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 C.F.R. 
§180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 C.F.R. § 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 
C.F.R. § 1989 Comp., p. 235), “Debarment and Suspension.” SAM Exclusions contains the names 
of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared 
ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549. Vendor 



013020-SKI 
 

15 
Rev. 4/2019 
 

certifies that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation by any federal 
department or agency. 
 
G. BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT, AS AMENDED (31 U.S.C. § 1352). Vendors must file 
any required certifications. Vendors must not have used federal appropriated funds to pay any 
person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member 
of Congress in connection with obtaining any federal contract, grant, or any other award 
covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Vendors must disclose any lobbying with non-federal funds that 
takes place in connection with obtaining any federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded 
from tier to tier up to the non-federal award. Vendors must file all certifications and disclosures 
required by, and otherwise comply with, the Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. § 
1352). 
 
H. RECORD RETENTION REQUIREMENTS. To the extent applicable, Vendor must comply with 
the record retention requirements detailed in 2 C.F.R. § 200.333. The Vendor further certifies 
that it will retain all records as required by 2 C.F.R. § 200.333 for a period of three (3) years 
after grantees or subgrantees submit final expenditure reports or quarterly or annual financial 
reports, as applicable, and all other pending matters are closed. 
 
I. ENERGY POLICY AND CONSERVATION ACT COMPLIANCE. To the extent applicable, Vendor 
must comply with the mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are 
contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy 
and Conservation Act. 
 
J. BUY AMERICAN PROVISIONS COMPLIANCE. To the extent applicable, Vendor must comply 
with all applicable provisions of the Buy American Act. Purchases made in accordance with the 
Buy American Act must follow the applicable procurement rules calling for free and open 
competition. 
 
K. ACCESS TO RECORDS (2 C.F.R. § 200.336). Vendor agrees that duly authorized 
representatives of a federal agency must have access to any books, documents, papers and 
records of Vendor that are directly pertinent to Vendor’s discharge of its obligations under this 
Contract for the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. The right 
also includes timely and reasonable access to Vendor’s personnel for the purpose of interview 
and discussion relating to such documents. 
 
L. PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS (2 C.F.R. § 200.322). A non-federal entity that is 
a state agency or agency of a political subdivision of a state and its contractors must comply 
with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation 
and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in 
guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 C.F.R. § 247 that contain the 
highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a 



013020-SKI 
 

16 
Rev. 4/2019 
 

satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the 
value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; procuring 
solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; 
and establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials 
identified in the EPA guidelines.  
 

24. CANCELLATION 
 

Sourcewell or Vendor may cancel this Contract at any time, with or without cause, upon sixty 
(60) days’ written notice to the other party. However, Sourcewell may cancel this Contract 
immediately upon discovery of a material defect in any certification made in Vendor’s Proposal.  
Termination of this Contract does not relieve either party of financial, product, or service 
obligations incurred or accrued prior to termination.  
 
 

Sourcewell            Stertil-Koni USA Inc. 

By: __________________________ By: __________________________ 
Jeremy Schwartz Jean DellAmore 

Title: Director of Operations & 
Procurement/CPO 

Title: President 

 
Date: ________________________ 

Date: ________________________ 

Approved:  
  
By: __________________________  

Chad Coauette  
Title: Executive Director/CEO  
 
Date: ________________________ 

 

 



Bid Number: RFP 013020 Vendor Name: Stertil-Koni USA, Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 013020 Vendor Name: Stertil-Koni USA, Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 013020 Vendor Name: Stertil-Koni USA, Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 013020 Vendor Name: Stertil-Koni USA, Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 013020 Vendor Name: Stertil-Koni USA, Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 013020 Vendor Name: Stertil-Koni USA, Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 013020 Vendor Name: Stertil-Koni USA, Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 013020 Vendor Name: Stertil-Koni USA, Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 013020 Vendor Name: Stertil-Koni USA, Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 013020 Vendor Name: Stertil-Koni USA, Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 013020 Vendor Name: Stertil-Koni USA, Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 013020 Vendor Name: Stertil-Koni USA, Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 013020 Vendor Name: Stertil-Koni USA, Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 013020 Vendor Name: Stertil-Koni USA, Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 013020 Vendor Name: Stertil-Koni USA, Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 013020 Vendor Name: Stertil-Koni USA, Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 013020 Vendor Name: Stertil-Koni USA, Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 013020 Vendor Name: Stertil-Koni USA, Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 013020 Vendor Name: Stertil-Koni USA, Inc. 



Bid Number: RFP 013020 Vendor Name: Stertil-Koni USA, Inc. 



 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

AMENDMENT #1 
TO  

CONTRACT #013020-SKI 
 
 
THIS AMENDMENT is by and between Sourcewell and Stertil-Koni USA Inc. (Vendor).  
 
Vendor has a Sourcewell Contract for Vehicle Lifts, with Garage and Fleet Maintenance 
Equipment relating to the provision of services by Vendor and to Sourcewell and its Members 
(Original Agreement). 
 
The parties agree that certain terms within the Original Agreement will be updated and 
amended and only to the extent as hereunder provided.  
 
IN CONSIDERATION OF the mutual covenants and agreements described in this Amendment, 
the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. This Amendment is effective upon the date of the last signature below. 
 

2. Section 20. Insurance, Subsection A. Requirements, Item 6 Network Security and Privacy 
Liability Insurance of the Original Agreement is modified to reduce the minimum limits 
required from $2,000,000 to now $1,000,000 per occurrence and annual aggregate.  

 
Remainder of this page intentionally left blank. 

  



 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Except as amended by this Amendment, the Original Agreement remains in full force and 
effect. 
 
Sourcewell      Stertil-Koni USA Inc. 
 
 
By:       By:      
Authorized Signature     Authorized Signature  
 
Jeremy Schwartz     Kellie Boehm     
Name – Printed     Name – Printed 
 
Title: Director of Operations & Procurement/CPO Title:       
 
Date:       Date:      
 
Sourcewell–APPROVED:  
 
 
By:      
Authorized Signature     
 
Chad Coauette    
Name – Printed     
 
Title: Executive Director/CEO   
 
Date:      


	1 Agenda September 12, 2023
	3 Minutes_16_Aug 22-2023
	MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE PRESIDENT
	Daniel P. DiMaria, Village President

	8 Proclamation Constitution Week 
	11b1a Res 23-37 LS Sale of Surplus Fire Hose 
	11b1b Res 23-37 Sale of Surplus Fire Hose 
	11c1a Res 23-36 LS SAFEbuilt 
	11c1b Res 23-36 SAFEbuilt 2024 
	11d1a Res 23-38 LS OMER LIFT PURCHASE
	11d1b Res 23-38 OMER LIFT PURCHASE
	Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk

	11d1c Res 23-38 OMER LIFT PURCHASE EXA Quote - Stertil Koni
	11d1d Res 23-38 OMER LIFT PURCHASE Ex A-1 Contract
	Stertil-Koni Contract 013020
	Stertil-Koni Amendment 013020

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

